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July 20, 2021 
 

Portsmouth Planning Board 
Attn: Dexter Legg 
1 Junkins Avenue, Suite 3rd Floor 
Portsmouth, NH 03801 
 
RE: Response Letter 2 – TAC Comments  

3400 Lafayette Road, Portsmouth, NH 
 Tax Map 297, Lot 11 
 JBE Project No. 20737 
  
Dear Mr. Legg, 
 
Jones & Beach Engineers, Inc., is in receipt of comments from the TAC members dated July 6, 
2021. Original review comments are italicized, and we offer the following responses below: 
 

a. If an AOT Permit is required then no additional third party drainage review is required 
by the City at this time. 

RESPONSE: An AoT permit will be required for this project. 
 

b. Water main pipe is required to be ductile iron. All valves and hydrants to open right. 
RESPONSE:  The detail of the water trench has been updated to say ductile 
iron.  

 
c. Please provide an update on the status of compliance with zoning as noted previously. 

RESPONSE:  We do need a variance and the variance is being applied for.   
 

d. Please identify which types of community space you are proposing (see section 10.5A.45 
of the Zoning Ordinance). 

RESPONSE:  Community Space table has been provided on sheet OVR. 
 

e. Please indicate how you are satifying the requirements for provision of bicycle parking 
(see section 10.1116 of the Ordinance) 

RESPONSE: Bike rack locations and detail have been provided.   
 

f. In your responses to previous TAC comments, you indicated you will meet City standards 
as listed. Have plans and details been updated to reflect that? 

RESPONSE: Plans and details have been revised according to City Standards. 
 

g. Hydrant locations shall be approved by the Fire Dept. prior to Planning Board review. 
RESPONSE: Hydrants have been added near station 4+25 and 9+80. 
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h. Per Section 10.1112.32 of the Zoning Ordinance, you are required to provide 10 visitor 
spaces ( 1 for every 5 dwellings) Please explain how you propose to satisfy this 
requirement? 

RESPONSE:.  Visitor parking calculations have been added to Note #4 on Sheet 
C2. 

 
i. You provided a number of documents related to the exisiting conservation easement on 

the property. Please explain whether these documents indicate that recreational trails 
and related improvements are permitted. 

RESPONSE: All of the documents we have found have been submitted to the 
City for their review.  The NRP zone allows trails and the existing easement area 
is entirely within the NRP zone.   

 
j. Your plans do not appear to be in compliance with Section 10.5B90 of the Zoning 

Ordinance ( Pedestrian Access and Circulation). A minimum 8’ wide pedestrian walkway 
should be provided throughout the site connection to the main entrances of buildings. 
Your internal pedestrian network is incomplete and the project should consider off-site 
connection to abutting land use along Route 1. 

RESPONSE: Where are we going to put the 8’ pedestrian walkway 
 

k. The stormwater for this site should not outlet into the wetland area that has been 
designed for mitigation. While the stormwater is being treated complete removal of all 
contaminants (i.e. chloride) is not possible with current technology. However, there will 
be impacts to this wetland area over the longterm if chlorine and other contaminatnts are 
allowed to be introduced to the wetland mitigation area. 

RESPONSE: Green SnoPro note was already on Note #20 on sheet C2.   
 

l. There is community space proposed in an area with a conservation easement to the 
benefit of the City. This area is already accessible as community space and already 
protected with a conservation easement. It does not seem appropriate to use this area as 
credit for community space. 

RESPONSE: We are proposing a conservation easement on 10.3 acres of land 
and that counts towards our required community space.  We are not counting 
the existing conservation easement as part of our community space.   

 
m. Please provide a statement listing the green building components planned for this 

project. 
RESPONSE: A green building statement was submitted with our last submission 
but we have revised it and are submitting a new statement attached along with 
this letter.   

 
n. The overall site plan is still to crowded and dense with too much impervious surface and 

too little usual internal open space. Consideration should be given to removing (or 
potentially relocating) the five units (in two separate buildings) located at the end of the 
development. 

RESPONSE: We revised the layout after meeting with City staff to modify the 
site design.  We relocated the 2 units at the end of the road and reconfigured the 
layout.  We have added textured pavement in front of units 39-50 to break up 
the asphalt in front of these units.   
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The site density far exceeds what we are proposing.  We have 15.55 acres of 
Gateway G1 land which allows for 248 units.  After we place a conservation 
easement on 10.3 acres of Gateway land, we have 5.25 acres of developable land 
remaining which allows a density of 84 units.  We are only proposing 50 units on 
the property and therefore we do not feel we are too crowded or dense of a 
development.   

 
o. Egress from the last two units appear to require a vehicle to back up to the cul-de-sac in 

order to exit the site. 
RESPONSE: The 2 units have been relocated and the backup issue at the end of 
the road no longer exists. 

 
p. Snow storage areas appear inadequate due to the density of the proposed development. 

RESPONSE: Snow storage areas have been expanded. 
 

q. Additional usable or active community space is needed within the development area. 
RESPONSE: We do not feel that we need to provide additional community space 
as we are required to provide 10% of the total lot size or 4.4 acres of community 
space.  We are providing a conservation easement on 10.3 acres of land, a dog 
park of 2,050 sf, a pocket park of 4,050 sf and proposed trails of 23,200 sf for a 
total of 11 acres.  The conservation easement will have a proposed trail for the 
public to allow them to walk onto the property and connect to another proposed 
trail that leads to the sewer easement existing trail.    

 
r. Any trail system should consider connection to Coach Road and potential connection to 

Nathaniel Drive. 
RESPONSE: The proposed trail system is connected to Coach Road and DPW 
said at the last TAC meeting that the sewer easement trail doesn’t connect to  
Nathaniel Drive because of a detention pond or wetland located on the abutting 
property.   

 
s. It should be clarified whether the applicant is proposing to deed an easement or the fee to 

the city got the proposed open space at the back of the site. Note that the City owns all 
the abutting property (in 6 separate parcels) to the northwest. 

RESPONSE:  We are willing to consider either option for the proposed 
conservation easement land.    

 
t. The proposed concrete sidewalk should be set back at least two feet (with a turf belt) 

from the proposed sloped granite curb in order to preserve the edge. Conversely, vertical 
granite curb should be used if space is unavailable for the turf belt. 

RESPONSE: We have made the sidewalk 8’ wide concrete with vertical granite 
curbing. 

 
u. In order to break up the massing along the main driveway, all garage door should be 

covered with either a second story balcony or a small projecting roof structure. Lighting 
should also be shown above the garage doors. 

RESPONSE: We are providing preliminary renderings showing that on homes 
with balconies on the garage side, the balconies will be above the garage door.  
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On buildings that do not have a balcony on the garage side, we are providing a 
projecting roof structure above the garage doors.  As noted, lighting will be 
provided above or beside the garage doors.     

The following is provided in support of this letter: 

1. Two (2) Full Size Plan Sets.
2. One (1) Half-Size Plan Set.
3. Green Building Statement
4. Updated Building Renderings

Thank you very much for your time.  If you have any questions, or need further assistance, 
please contact our office. 

Very truly yours, 
JONES & BEACH ENGINEERS, INC. 

Joseph Coronati 
Vice President 

cc:   Michael Green, Green & Company (via email) 
John Kuzinivich, Esq (via email) 
John Bosen, Esq (via email) 
Greg Mikolaities, consultant (via email) 
Jamie Long, GZA (via email) 
Lindsay White, GZA (via email) 
Tom Severino (via email)  

Joseph Coronati



Bruce A. Bennett, Principal 
Manager Building Energy Services 
bruce.bennett@gdsassociates.com 

direct 603-391-.0052 
cell 603-860-0968 

GDS-Home Energy Ratings of New England is a RESNET-accredited Home Energy Rating Provider and registered ENERGY STAR Partner 
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Green & Co 
Attn: Michael Green 
11 Lafayette Road, P.O. Box 1297 
North Hampton, NH 03862 
 
RE:  3400 Lafayette Road, Portsmouth, New Hampshire 

 
Hello Michael: 
Thank you for your continued commitment to NH Saves.  We look forward to working with you on the energy ratings for the 
units being constructed at 3400 Lafayette Road.  Our team here at GDS is happy to be working with Green and Company on 
another NH Saves project. 
 
For the benefit of others not familiar with the NH Saves and the Home Energy Rating System index (HERS index) and what it 
means for homes receiving the label, these units are modeled and analyzed to estimate annual energy consumption but are 
more than just energy efficient.  The program also includes an element of building durability and healthy building 
environments.  The process includes energy modeling and performance‐based testing as well as on‐site inspections to 
confirm the modeling inputs, to identify opportunities to improve insulation and air‐sealing prior to drywall, duct leakage 
testing, and blower door testing. 
 
These homes are by design at least 30% more efficient than code built home (IECC 2015) and include high efficient HVAC 
and water heating equipment, insulation installed to attain an installation grading of grade, excellent window efficiencies 
(u‐value ≤ 0.30) and high efficacy lighting and ENERGY STAR appliances. 
 
Because NH Saves encourages tight, well insulated buildings, the program does not want to create any issues with indoor 
air quality.  Therefore, the program requires some means of whole‐house ventilation (compliant with ASHRAE Standard 
62.2) and includes a moisture management checklist.  All of this adds a non‐energy benefit to constructing a home that is 
energy efficiency, healthy and durable. 
 
Our plan is to utilize the NHSaves program (sponsored by Eversource, Unitil, Liberty and NHEC) to provide support for 
modeling and inspections. 
 
Once we receive a set of plans we can begin the take‐off and energy modeling.  In the meantime, as always, please contact 
me with any questions or design changes that may impact the HERS index. 
 
Thank you, 

 
Bruce Bennett, Principal 
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